
 

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270   Registered Charity No. 296103 

 

 
 
 

Care England  
HR Group Minutes 

19 October 2023 - 13:00-14:00 
 
 

Welcome & Introductions 

 
George Appleton (GA), Head of Policy at Care England - welcomed attendees to the meeting. 
 
Supporting this meeting:  

• Louis Holmes (LH) – Digital and System Transformation Projects Manager at Care England 

• Ioan Bishop (IB) - Policy, Parliamentary and Projects Officer at Care England 

• Charlotte Lezard (CL) - Policy and Public Affairs Officer at Care England 

• Lauren Hague (LH2) - Policy Officer at Care England 
 

• Jim Thomas (JT) - Workforce Development Specialist at Longhouseman 

• Hannah Bollard (HB) - Associate at Anthony Collins Solicitors 
 
GA went through the status of actions from the previous meeting. 
 
Shared workforce priorities 

 
JT explained that three years ago ADASS, LGA and Skills for Care developed a set of shared workforce 
priorities (see accompanying slides). Noted that this work is being revisited to see how priorities may 
have developed since the pandemic and invited members to offer their suggestions. 
 
Member noted that the priorities would be useful in shaping their HR strategy plan. Suggested 
‘leadership’ for inclusion, as this impacts wellbeing through shaping environment and culture. 
Suggested ‘technology’ be reframed as ‘change’, as this point is about accommodating change 
beyond just digital systems. Suggested including a point on striking the correct balance between 
international recruitment and UK-based employees, as well as college education courses for carers, 
affordable rents/housing and robotics. 
 
Member suggested a point on care registration, linking this back to the principles and values we 
want to see in the care workforce. 
 
GA suggested looking at the ability of staff to work full-time and not be on a zero-hour contract, as 
well as access to training and ensuring those working in care have the relevant qualifications. 
 
Member suggested looking at agency use. 
 
LH suggested looking at the use of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in the sector and how this can 
complement, rather than replace, the work of care professionals. 
 
International recruitment fund 

http://www.careengland.org.uk/


 

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270   Registered Charity No. 296103 

 

 
GA noted that in May 2023 the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) distributed £15m to 
local partnerships to support international recruitment. These funds have been used differently in 
different areas. 
 
GA noted mixed success from members in attempting to contact regional leads.  
 
ACTION: Members facing challenges in contacting regional leads for the international recruitment 
fund to contact George Appleton (gappleton@careengland.org.uk) 
 
Immigration developments 

 
LH2 noted that as of 4 October 2023, the costs associated with obtaining a UK visa have increased by 
roughly 15%. This may impact whether providers decide to include a repayment clause for staff who 
leave their roles prematurely. 
 
LH2 noted that civil penalties for employers employing individuals without VISAs or not following the 
correct terms and conditions within the VISA are tripling in January 2024. First penalties are 
increasing from £15,000 to £40,000 and subsequent penalties from £20,000 to £60,000. Emphasised 
the importance of implementing a systematic method of Right to Work checks. 
 
Made With Care 

 
IB noted that DHSC has launched the next phase of their ‘Made With Care’ domestic recruitment 
campaign. 
 
IB noted that last year’s campaign saw over 244,000 candidates search for a social care job on the 
website after seeing the campaign. 
 
IB noted that DHSC is calling for providers to list their vacancies on DWP’s Find a Job portal. Other 
free resources for help providers fill their vacancies include free printable and digital assets and the 
ability to advertise job roles for free on http://www.adultsocialcare.co.uk/. 
 
Adult social care pathway 

 
GA noted that DHSC is collating results from their call for evidence on the adult social care pathway 
and working with Skills for Care and the wider sector on the pathway’s development. 
 
GA noted that DHSC intends to publish the first part of the pathway, focused on staff in direct care 
roles, in Autumn 2023. Further phases of the pathway will follow, including focusing on other roles 
such as personal assistants and registered managers. 
 
Skills for Care’s ‘State of’ report 

 
IB noted that Skills for Care has published the latest edition of their flagship report – The state of the 
adult social care sector and workforce in England. 
 
IB went through the high-level findings of the report and flagged that Care England had held a 
webinar with Skills for Care looking at the report and how providers make insights like these possible 
through the use of the Adult Social Care Workforce Dataset (materials accessible here). 
 

http://www.careengland.org.uk/
mailto:gappleton@careengland.org.uk
https://findajob.dwp.gov.uk/
http://www.adultsocialcare.co.uk/
https://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Adult-Social-Care-Workforce-Data/Workforce-intelligence/documents/State-of-the-adult-social-care-sector/The-State-of-the-Adult-Social-Care-Sector-and-Workforce-2023.pdf
https://www.careengland.org.uk/events/skills-for-care-the-state-of-the-adult-social-care-sector-and-workforce-in-england/


 

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270   Registered Charity No. 296103 

 

GA noted that Care England published a reactionary statement to the report’s publication – see 
here. 
 
GA noted that, following the publication of the report, Skills for Care is developing a workforce 
strategy for adult social care. This will be co-produced with the sector and Care England will keep 
members updated in relation to the workforce strategy’s progress. 
 
Oliver McGowan Mandatory Training 

 
CL noted that Care England has submitted its response to the Oliver McGowan mandatory training 
draft code of practice. The response noted that the sector is united in its support for an appropriate 
learning disability and autism training framework, however, there are concerns about a lack of 
clarity in the guidance to ensure providers can meet legislative requirements. Noted that the 
response also highlighted ongoing financial pressures and the importance of supporting providers to 
roll out the training. 
 
CL noted that members have raised concerns about the cost of the training – Care England is looking 
to relay these concerns to DHSC. 
 
ACTION: Members to share details of Oliver McGowan Mandatory Training costs, to be used 
confidentially in discussions with DHSC, with CL (clezard@careengland.org.uk) 
 
Winter planning 

 
LH noted that Care England has published a best practice framework to aid system leaders’ 
engagement with local adult social care providers (accessible here). 
 
LH noted that the document outlines pragmatic solutions under five core principles: 

1. Utilising the whole adult social care sector through person-centred care to improve demand 
and capacity planning 

2. Ensure that ICB workforce strategies promote integrational working between health and 
social care partners and address the challenges facing the care workforce 

3. Using technology to support effective care transfer hubs, improve discharge capacity and 
process, and avoid (re)admission into hospital 

4. Refining commissioning practices and relationships 
5. Delivering pragmatic engagement and maintaining clear communication with the sector 

 
Legal update 

 
HB noted that the Labour Party has proposed a number of changes to employment law that they 
would enact if elected at the next general election. 
 
HB noted that Labour would 

• Address sleep-over hours, with staff needing to be paid the national minimum wage for 
every hour of the shift. If this does happen and providers are subject to the additional cost, it 
would be important to ensure it is reflected in conversations with the local authority about 
fee rates.  

• Create a single status of ‘worker’, as opposed to the three-tier system we have currently.  

• Ban zero-hour contracts and give workers with irregular working patterns the right to a more 
permanent working pattern after 12 weeks of employment. 

http://www.careengland.org.uk/
https://www.careengland.org.uk/a-chance-for-change/
https://www.careengland.org.uk/a-chance-for-change/
mailto:clezard@careengland.org.uk
https://www.careengland.org.uk/winter-2023-2024-what-good-looks-like-for-adult-social-care/


 

2 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4UJ | 08450 577 677 www.careengland.org.uk | Registered in England No. 2082270   Registered Charity No. 296103 

 

• Give workers a day one right protecting against unfair dismissal, compared to the two years 
at present. 

• Make it a day one right for workers to receive flexible working, with employers required to 
accommodate this as much as reasonably possible. 

• Ban ‘fire-and-rehire’. 

• Extend the time limit that claimants have for bringing a claim to an employment tribunal. 
 
AoB 

 
Care England Conference 
 
GA noted that bookings are now open for the Care England Conference 2024, taking place in March 
at Church House, Westminster. Noted that members of the HR group are entitled to a discount of 3 
tickets for the price of tickets – to access, enter the code ‘SIG3for2’ in the message/reference box 
when purchasing your tickets. 
 
Employee vaccination 
 
Member explained that many of their employees are not keen on getting vaccinated. Enquired 
about other members’ experiences. 
 
GA flagged the NHS uptick charts and will pick up the query offline. 
 
End of meeting. 
 
Care England 
19 October 2023 
 
 

http://www.careengland.org.uk/

